Before the Public Service Commission

Of the State of Missouri

	Director of the Manufactured Housing and Modular Units Program of the Public Service Commission, 

                                  Complainant, 

v. 

America’s Home Brokers, Inc.

                                  Respondent.
	)))))))))))
	Case No. MC-2005-0028




PRETRIAL BRIEF


COMES NOW the Director of the Manufactured Housing and Modular Units Program of the Public Service Commission (“Director” and “Program”), by and through the Missouri Public Service Commission’s (“Commission”) Office of General Counsel and for his Pretrial Brief states as follows:

BACKGROUND

1.
On July 22, 2004, the Director filed the Complaint in the instant case, based upon results of manufactured home inspections performed by Staff. These inspections were performed in response to inspection requests filed by consumers.  

2.
The Program has adopted in 4 CSR 240-120.050 and follows the Housing and Urban Development regulations regarding the procedures to be followed by state administrative agencies, when they receive a consumer complaint or other information indicating a possible safety hazard, serious defect or some other noncompliance in a new manufactured home. These regulations can be found in 24 CFR Sections 3282.403 through 3282.417.  The actual compliance standards are found in 24 CFR Part 3280.  The Commission also promulgated commission rule 4 CSR 240-120-065 (2), which states in part that proper initial setup is in accordance with the installation manual provided by the manufacturer of the home.  It is through the use and application of these codes, standards and manuals that the Director carries out the Program’s inspection functions.

3.
The issues in this case are factual in nature and depend heavily upon the evidence and testimony to be presented in the evidentiary hearing.    

Complaint Count One


4.
The issues that are applicable to the following list of deficiencies for Count One are: a) whether the deficiencies existed at the time the inspection was performed by Staff of the manufactured housing program; b) whether notice was provided to the Respondent and an opportunity to correct the deficiencies was given; and c) whether the Respondent corrected the deficiencies in a reasonable period of time, not to exceed ninety days.  


a. The dealer has submitted an application for permission to alter for the purpose of installing a whirlpool pump and jets in the master bathtub.  The whirlpool pump wiring is not installed in conduit.  The application for alteration is incorrect and incomplete.

b. The electric cable is not installed properly.  The cable must either be run in the floor of the home and secured every 4 ½ ` and within 12” of the outlet box, or installed in conduit under the home and properly supported not exceeding 4 ½ `.

c. The electric cable installed under the home for the central air conditioner circuit is not protected in conduit from moisture and damage.

d. The drain line installed under the home is not supported as required, it should be supported every 4” minimum.

e. Portions of the crossover heat duct are supported with metal wire and the wire is damaging the heat duct.  The heat duct should be supported using corrosive resistant straps.

f. The bolt holes in the bottom board along the centerline of the home need to be resealed.

g. The jack post installed and secured to the transverse support beams must also be secured to the concrete footer.

h. The jack post installed under the main frame of the home between the transverse beams must also be secured in place.


5.
It is the Director’s contention that the deficiencies noted did exist at the time the initial inspection was performed, that notice and an opportunity to correct the deficiencies was provided to the Respondent and as of January 11, 2005, the deficiencies were not corrected by Respondent resulting in a violation of §§ 700.025, 700.045(4) and (5), and 700.100.3(6), RSMo Supp. 2003, and 700.065, RSMo 2000.

COMPLAINT Count Two


6.
The issues that are applicable to the following list of deficiencies for Count Two are: a) whether the deficiencies existed at the time the inspection was performed by Staff of the manufactured housing program; b) whether notice was provided to the Respondent and an opportunity to correct the deficiencies was given; and c) whether the Respondent corrected the deficiencies in a reasonable period of time, not to exceed ninety days.  


a. The centerline floors are uneven in the doorway to the master bedroom.  The floors are now uneven in the marriage line openings of the family room and living room.

b. The required centerline column supports have not been installed, correctly

c. The crossover electric cables have not been protected in the floor of the home as required by the manufacture.

d. The frame ground crossover ground wire has not been installed.

e. The bottom board needs to be patched along the centerline at the lag bolt locations.

f. The combustion air inlet for the fireplace must be properly vented to the exterior of the basement foundation.

g. The manufacture requires the ends of the two sections to be fastened together per the installation manual. 

h. The dealer has altered this home by installing a whirlpool in the master bathtub.   The dealer must submit an application for permission to alter along with the required documents to the Director for approval and all alterations must be inspected and approved prior to the sale of the altered manufactured home. 

i. Both of the main I-beams under the front section have been damaged.  The I-beams are damaged just behind the axle area of the home.  Approximately 5 feet of the beams are bent in the flange and web of the beams and the beams are laying over.  The dealer must submit an application for permission to alter along with the required documents to the Director for approval.  The frame repairs must be made according to the manufacturer’s approved design.


7.
It is the Director’s contention that the deficiencies noted did exist at the time the initial inspection was performed, that notice and an opportunity to correct the deficiencies was provided to the Respondent and as of January 11, 2005, the deficiencies were not corrected by Respondent resulting in a violation of §§ 700.025, 700.045(4) and (5), and 700.100.3(6), RSMo Supp. 2003.

COMPLAINT Count Three


8.
The issues that are applicable to the following list of deficiencies for Count Three are: a) whether the deficiencies existed at the time the inspection was performed by Staff of the manufactured housing program; b) whether notice was provided to the Respondent and an opportunity to correct the deficiencies was given; and c) whether the Respondent corrected the deficiencies in a reasonable period of time, not to exceed ninety days.  


a. The frame ground crossover wire has not been installed.

b. The combustion air inlet for the fireplace must be properly vented to the exterior of the home.

c. The foundation wall is not properly vented.  The manufacture requires a minimum of 1 square foot of ventilation for every 150 square feet of enclosed area.


9.
It is the Director’s contention that the deficiencies noted did exist at the time the initial inspection was performed, that notice and an opportunity to correct the deficiencies was provided to the Respondent and as of January 11, 2005, the deficiencies were not corrected by Respondent resulting in a violation of §§ 700.045(5) and 700.100.3(6), RSMo Supp. 2003, and 700.065, RSMo 2000. 

Complaint Count Four


10.
The issues that are applicable to the following list of deficiencies for Count Four are: a) whether the deficiencies existed at the time the inspection was performed by Staff of the manufactured housing program; b) whether notice was provided to the Respondent and an opportunity to correct the deficiencies was given; and c) whether the Respondent corrected the deficiencies in a reasonable period of time, not to exceed ninety days.  


a. The manufacture requires piers over 36” in height to be double stacked, the piers are single stacked.

b. The drain line installed under the home is not strapped every 4’ minimum, as required.

c. The electric cable installed under the home for the central air conditioner circuit is not protected in conduit from moisture and damage as required.

d. There are no perimeter piers installed under the exterior doors as required by the manufacture.

e. The home is not properly anchored according to state standards.


i)
The anchors installed are class 4 approved anchors, but there are no stabilizer devices installed and some of the anchors are not installed to their full depth.


ii)
The frame straps must be installed tight.


11.
It is the Director’s contention that the deficiencies noted did exist at the time the initial inspection was performed, that notice and an opportunity to correct the deficiencies was provided to the Respondent and as of January 11, 2005, the deficiencies were not corrected by Respondent resulting in a violation of §§ 700.045(5), and 700.100.3(6), RSMo Supp. 2003.

COMPLAINT COUNT FIVE


12.
The issues that are applicable to the following list of deficiencies for Count Five are: a) whether the deficiencies existed at the time the inspection was performed by Staff of the manufactured housing program; b) whether notice was provided to the Respondent and an opportunity to correct the deficiencies was given; and c) whether the Respondent corrected the deficiencies.  


a. America’s Homes has not provided the Director with proper sales invoices for homes that were prohibited from being sold (“red-tagged”).

b. America’s Homes has not attempted to complete registration as a manufactured home dealer for 2004.


13.
It is the Director’s contention that the deficiencies noted did exist at the time the initial inspection was performed, that notice and an opportunity to correct the deficiencies was provided to the Respondent and as of January 11, 2005, the deficiencies were not corrected by Respondent resulting in a violation of  §§ 700.455.1(2), RSMo 2000 and 700.090.1, RSMo Supp. 2003. 


WHEREFORE, the Director respectfully submits its pretrial brief to the Commission.
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